

# **DIVERSITY FAIRS OF VIRGINIA**

## **BYLAWS**

### **ARTICLE I - NAME**

**Sec. 1 - The name of this non-stock corporation in the State of Virginia is the Diversity Fairs of Virginia, (hereinafter referred to as Society)**

### **ARTICLE II - TERRITORY**

**Sec. 1 - The entire State of Virginia shall be included in the territory of the Society.**

**Sec. 2 - The Headquarters of the Society shall be the address designated by the Board of Directors 26128 Talamore Drive, South Riding, Virginia, 20152, as of September, 21, 2014.**

### **ARTICLE III - OBJECTIVES**

**Sec. 1 - The objectives of this Society shall be the development and advancement of diversity in Virginia, and the United States and in support of such international bodies as the Society may wish to join.**

**Sec. 2 - The main annual event of the Society will be a Fair which is designed to advocate for diversity in society.**

**Sec 3 - The society may establish additional projects to advocate for diversity or join any organization if the President and/or the Board determine said action would be valuable.**

### **ARTICLE IV - MEMBERSHIP AND DUES**

**Sec. 1 – Voting members are limited to the Board of Director and the Chief Executive Officer; but the society reserves the right to expand this definition at a later date.**

**Sec. 2 - Annual dues for voting members of the society shall be determined by a majority vote of the voting membership present at the annual meeting. .**

**Sec. 3 – The Chief Executive Officer is encouraged to acquire non-voting members and partners as appropriate in order to advance Society goals, and to set rules for their acceptance and termination. Any annual dues for non-voting members shall be determined by a majority decision of the non-voting members at the annual meeting.**

**Sec. 4 - The Society may raise additional operating funds in accordance with the bylaws of the society and county, state and federal laws and regulations.**

### **ARTICLE V - TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP**

**Sec. 1 – Voting Membership will be terminated upon a vote of  $\frac{3}{4}$  of the voting members or resignation from the Board or failure to pay Society dues beyond one year.**

## **ARTICLE V – OFFICERS and Staff**

**Sec. 1 - Officers of the Society shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. Each officer shall serve until his or her successor has been elected and qualified.**

**Sec. 2 - The following shall be the duties of the officers of the Society:**

**a. - The President serves for four years, is responsible for the administration of Society business, presiding at Board of Directors and Society business meetings, appointing all committees and task forces unless otherwise directed by the bylaws or the Board of Directors, and performing all other duties incident to this office. The president does not need to be member of the Board of Directors.**

**b. - The Secretary serves for one year, shall record minutes of Society and Board of Directors meetings and shall, in collaboration with the President, perform all other duties incident to this office.**

**e. - The Treasurer serves for one year, shall be responsible for all funds of the Society. The accounts shall be audited at the close of each year as directed by the President. The Treasurer shall prepare an annual report and financial statement for presentation at the annual meeting. The Treasurer also has special responsibility to advise the Society on compliance with relevant Tax laws and regulations.**

**Sec. 3 No officer may be paid for services prior to the first annual Fair; but all will be reimbursed for authorized expenditures or loans to the Society. Authorization is made by the President in consultation with the Treasurer. Following the first annual fair, officers and staff may be granted salaries or other benefits by the Board of Directors, as agreed by majority vote.**

## **ARTICLE VII - ELECTIONS**

**Sec. 1 – Members of the Board of Directors are elected by a majority vote of the Board upon and serve for two years initially; however, by 2016, the Board should expand to allow for staggered elections.**

**Sec. 2 - Society officers, shall be elected at the Annual Meeting by majority vote of the Board of Director or to fill an absence by a majority vote at a special meeting set by the Board. Election shall be by plurality vote of those voting.**

**Sec. 3 – The Board is required to solicit recommendations from Board members, non-voting members and partners of the Society for officer nominations. The list and solicitation process shall be managed by the Secretary or some officer elected by the Board. Provisions shall be made on the ballot for additional names to be added**

**by the voting membership.**

**Sec. 4 - Votes shall be counted by the Secretary. The candidate receiving the greatest**

**number of votes for each position shall be elected to that position. In case of a tie vote for a position in any election, the majority vote of qualified Board members attending the election meeting shall prevail.**

## **ARTICLE IIX - BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

**Sec. 1 - The Board of Directors shall be the governing body of the Society. It shall be composed of the three members initially, Larry Roeder, Randy Ihara and Hari Sharma and each is elected for two years. The President of the Society is also a member; but if also a member of Board, only has one vote.**

**Sec. 2 - A quorum of the Board of Directors shall a majority of its members and the concurrence of a majority of those voting shall be required for all determinations.**

**Sec. 3 – The budget shall be designed by the President and authorized by the Board; but expenditures within the Budget are made and authorized by the President.**

**Sec. 4 - The Board shall meet at least quarterly to transact business at a time and place to be determined by the Board or at the request of the President.**

#### **ARTICLE X - COMMITTEES AND TASK FORCES**

**Sec. 1 - Other than a Nominating Committee, which is appointed by the Board, all committees and tasks forces shall be set up by the President, and must act within the Budget.**

#### **ARTICLE XI - MEETINGS**

**Sec. 1 - There shall be one meeting of the Society each year which shall be designated as the annual meeting. The time and location of the annual meeting shall be determined by the Board of Directors with consideration for securing maximum voting and non-voting membership attendance and transaction of essential business. Notice of the annual meeting shall be mailed and or emailed to the memberships six weeks in advance of the meeting.**

**Sec. 2 - Other meetings may be called by decision of the Board of Directors, the President or by written petition of at least ten percent of the non-voting members of the Society. The business of such meetings shall be limited to that which is called for in the agenda or petition or is permitted by two-thirds of the Voting Members attending the meeting. All members shall be notified of such meetings at least 15 days prior to the meeting. Included with the notice of the meeting shall be an agenda or other notification of business to be transacted.**

**Sec. 3 - The order of business and all parliamentary procedure at any meeting shall be in accordance with the latest printing of Robert's Rules of Order, except where this may conflict with the bylaws of the Society.**

**Sec. 4 - Any member of the Society and their guests may attend the meetings of the Society.**

#### **ARTICLE XII - AWARDS**

**Sec. 1 - The Board or the President may from time to time scholarships, medals or other awards in recognition of outstanding work or ability in the field of diversity; but all expenses must covered by the existing budget or as needed special financial permission granted by the Board.**

### **ARTICLE XIII - ADOPTION AND AMENDMENTS OF BYLAWS**

**Sec. 1 – It is assumed that as the Society grows and matures, bylaws will need to be amended, so bylaws shall be amended when a proposal submitted by the Board of Directors is approved by two-thirds vote of the members voting on the proposal by mail, at a regular annual election, or at a special election called by the Board of Directors. A copy of the proposed amendment, with a ballot stating clearly its general object and referring to the copy for particulars, shall be mailed by the secretary to each member of the Society at least 30 days before the date set for the election. An amendment shall, unless otherwise provided therein, be effective immediately upon its adoption by a majority of the voting members. The ballots for any proposed amendment shall be counted as provided for in the election of officers and the results shall be announced by the President as soon as practicable. Anything contained in the bylaws**

**adopted by the Society which is deemed by action of the Board of Directors to be in conflict with the law or regulation shall be void and of no effect after official notification to the Society.**

**Sec. 2. Before bylaws are voted on, the advice of the non-voting members must be sought and seriously considered.**

### **ARTICLE XIV - STATUS AND DISSOLUTION**

**Sec. 1 - The Society is a non-profit organization dedicated to the furtherance of diversity for the benefit of the general public and not the monetary profit or gain to its members.**

**Sec. 2 - The Society may be dissolved by two-thirds vote of the voting members present at a Society meeting, provided that written notice of the intention to vote upon dissolution be sent to each Society member (voting and non-voting) 30 days in advance of voting.**

**Sec. 3 - If dissolution is favorably acted upon, all just debts shall be paid out of the Society funds. All remaining assets shall be transferred to a charity, based on the recommendation of the non voting members.**

### **ARTICLE XV - EFFECTIVE DATE**

**These bylaws were adopted by vote of the voting membership at a Society meeting on September 21, 2014.**